
 

29 Jun 07 
 

1

 
Army Sustainability Committee (ASC)  

Meeting Minutes 
 

28 June 2007 
 
 
Welcome and Opening Remarks 
 
COL Mike Bennett (ODEP) began by welcoming members to the meeting and reviewing 
the agenda (Enclosure 1).  He thanked everyone for attending and noted that this was 
his first official ASC meeting as Co-Chair.    He emphasized that he has heard many 
good things about the ASC and what is has accomplished since its inception.  He 
emphasized that we need to keep the momentum going forward.  From a personal 
perspective, he noted that he comes from the NGB-ARNG logistics side of the house, 
and prior to that he spent 3 years at ODASA(ESOH). In all he has spent the last 10 
years working in the Army environmental program, and before that he was a regulator in 
North Carolina and New Jersey.  He then asked each attendee to introduce themselves.  
Doug Warnock (ODEP) asked everyone to mark the attendance sheet (Enclosure 2), 
and make necessary corrections to the listed contact information if needed.   
 
Review 26 April 2007 Meeting Minutes 
 
COL Phillips next asked the group if any changes were needed to the minutes from the 
26 Apr 07 meeting.   No one had any comments at this time, so he asked that any 
changes be forwarded to either Doug Warnock or Chris Werle (LMI) within the next 
week. LMI will ensure that the final minutes are posted to the Army sustainability 
website.   
 
Other ASC members then updated the group as listed on the agenda: old business, 
new business, and wrap-up.     
 
Old Business   
 
Strategic Plan Update 
 
Tad McCall (AEPI) updated the ASC on developments related to the ASE Strategic Plan 
that have occurred since the last meeting.  He began by noting there are three key 
things to watch for: EO 13423, the recent DAS/CINC sustainability briefing, and the 
staffing plan itself.  Regarding EO 13423, the Army’s strategy is to have Mr. Eastin 
designated as the Army lead.  This will include the requirement to establish an Army 
senior council to oversee EO implementation, with the ASE strategic plan essentially 
providing overarching guidance for the council.  The strategic plan currently has 10 
objectives that address all staff functional areas, to include a key role for USACE.  The 
EO memorandum has to be coordinated before the strategic plan is released. 
 
Regarding the DAS/CINC briefing, Mr. Davis provided this update on 25 Jun 07 to GEN 
Campbell and others.  After the initial briefing for the DAS last August, each ARSTAF 



 

29 Jun 07 
 

2

proponent was tasked with designating a lead for sustainability, and those leads 
underwent formal sustainability training at Darden/Carlisle.  GEN Campbell specifically 
asked Mr. Davis to provide this most recent update because he feels that sustainability 
is the right thing for the Army and Mr. Davis is the right person to lead the overall effort.   
 
The update briefing included a summary of the strategic communication plan, and Mr. 
Davis told the DAS that he still needs his help to keep the momentum rolling.  In 
particular, he needs help in coordinating the soon to be released strategic plan; 
ensuring the DAS obtains regular updates from his policy lead and empowers the lead 
to become a change agent for the organization; supporting the integration of critical 
sustainability tasks into the Strategic Management System (SMS); and carrying the 
sustainability message forward within the DAS organization. 
 
Tad went on to emphasize that sustainability will become a major node within the SMS 
and that we need to continue efforts to educate key Army stakeholders at 
Darden/Carlisle.  Doug pointed out that the Army Posture Statement has a sustainability 
addendum that can be viewed and downloaded from AKO.  Tad also noted that he gave 
a presentation at JSEM 2007 that summarized the many leadership initiatives that are 
underway since the ASE was released – sustainability is real and people are making 
good things happen in this area. 
 
COL Bennett said the recent briefing for the DAS has already prompted a DAS tasking 
to each ARSTAF proponent to update their sustainability POCs as soon as possible.  
 
Sustainability Workshops Update 
 
Doug Warnock updated the group on the status of installation sustainability workshops 
by reviewing the current schedule (Enclosure 3).  He noted that 14 installations are 
already doing sustainability plans, and several more are in the queue for FY07.  HQDA 
will continue to fund the effort; the only limiting factor right now is the availability of 
facilitators to provide on site support.  Several attendees emphasized that we should not 
let the lack of facilitators hold us back.  Perhaps we should take a self-help approach 
using the sustainability guidebook, which essentially walks you through the entire ISP 
development and implementation process.  We should also look at other potential 
models to apply to speed up the process.  Annette Stumpf (ERDC-CERL) suggested 
that we start compiling a database of case studies so we can share good ideas.  Doug 
said we could easily add this functionality to the sustainability website, which already 
has sections for installation use in posting success stories and related information.  
Shannon Cunniff [OADUSD (ESOH)-EC)] also noted that FedCenter.gov 
(http://www.fedcenter.gov) might also be used for this purpose.   
 
COL Bennett stated that we may need to take a similar approach to what we did with 
EMS, where we provided some funding and guidance/tools and then let the installations 
go forward with implementation on their own.  Greg Brewer (ACSIM-MD) thought this 
was a good idea, and suggested that we also provide a few examples of what a good 
ISP looks like for others to use and adapt for their use in preparing one.  Doug noted 
that the sustainability website already has some example ISPs posted.  COL Bennett 



 

29 Jun 07 
 

3

suggested that we add this topic as a major discussion item on the agenda for the 
August ASC meeting. 
 
New Business   
 
Strategic Communication Campaign Plan 
 
Anne Johnson (AEC PAO) next presented a briefing on the status of the strategic 
communication campaign plan (Enclosure 4).  She noted up front that Mr. Davis 
included this in his 25 Jun 07 update briefing to the DAS, and that the DAS liked and 
approved the plan.  The plan includes detailed information on the strategic context; the 
issue (key points including the triple bottom line); a definition of sustainability; a 
summary of the overarching theme and communication strategy; desired effects; 
effectiveness measures; public/command information messages and overall 
engagement strategy; and an execution matrix that details specific milestones, related 
messages, and engagement actions that will be accomplished.   
 
A key point on the execution matrix relates to key events that will take place in the Sep 
07 timeframe.  The DAS specifically asked that this highlight the formal rollout of the 
strategic plan, as well as other key events.  These will include Mr. Davis’ participation in 
a Stanford University and Washington media roundtable, as well as other high visibility 
speaking engagements and outreach activities that will target NGOs and other 
stakeholders.  Mr. Davis would also like to conduct a sustainability panel at the 
upcoming AUSA conference. 
 
Doug asked that a copy of the complete communication plan be distributed to all ASC 
members.  Anne also noted that the plan has already been posted to the AKO SCCG 
website for downloading.  Tad McCall pointed out that Army senior leaders have now 
elevated sustainability to equal importance with Future Combat Systems and other 
major programs.  We have senior leadership on board and we have the right message.  
What is most important now is that we effectively communicate that message. 
 
ASC Charter Revision Update 
 
Doug Warnock summarized the outcome of the 5 Jun 07 Charter revision work group 
meeting.  He noted that the current Charter expires on 13 Nov 07, and that COL Phillips 
tasked us to revise and staff it to ensure the ASC continues in operation for another 2 
years.  In summary, three major changes were proposed during the 5 Jun meeting:  (1) 
we should include appropriate language to emphasize the importance of EO 13423 and 
the ASC’s role in implementing its requirements; (2) we need to expand the list of 
Charter members to include MEDCOM, CHPPM, G-6, OCPA, and others as 
appropriate; and (3) we need to continue having ASC Co-Chairs, but we should replace 
the Chief, Sustainability Division, ODEP, with the Chief, Plans and Operations Division, 
OACSIM (or his designee).  This is needed because Plans and Operations will be the 
driving force behind sustainability for the Army; many installations have already placed 
sustainability under Plans and Ops.   
 



 

29 Jun 07 
 

4

Doug and COL Bennett are still trying to meet with COL Schuster (ACSIM Plans and 
Ops) to discuss this issue, and hope to do so in the near future.  Meanwhile, a draft 
revised Charter will be prepared to incorporate changes recommended during the 5 Jun 
meeting, and it will be circulated to all ASC members for review and comment as soon 
as it is ready.  Doug noted that formal staffing of the revised Charter will include Dr. 
College, Mr. Davis, and the Administrative Assistant to the SECARMY.  The staffing 
process takes 4-6 weeks, so we need to start now to ensure the new Charter is finalized 
and approved in a timely manner.  
 
Sustainability Awards 
 
Bill Sproul (ODEP) next updated the ASC on the status of concept development for 
annual Army Sustainability Awards.  Bill currently oversees the Army Environmental 
Awards Program.  He noted that he began working up a concept for sustainability 
awards about a year ago, but there wasn’t a great deal of support for it at that time.  
Now, however, Mr. Davis has specifically asked that COL Bennett develop a 
sustainability award for him to offer.  Bill handed out a draft strawman for the proposed 
award(s) (Enclosure 5), emphasizing that everything is just notional at this point.  Jason 
Hamby (ARNG) suggested that we pattern the sustainability awards after the existing 
environmental awards, which include various categories such as individual and 
installation.  Bill responded that we might just focus on doing a single award first and 
doing it well, and then maybe expand it to include other awards later.  We might also 
persuade OSD to develop a similar awards program.  Jason emphasized that it would 
be much easier to prepare nomination packets if they are done by specific categories 
that mirror the environmental awards.  Bill noted, however, that many sustainability 
initiatives fall outside the environmental functional area; cross-functional emphasis is 
most important since this is not to be an environmental award.   
 
Another issue concerns what office should sponsor the award – installations or 
environment.  Greg Brewer suggested that we might want to consider combining this 
with the Army Communities of Excellence Award program.  Bill said that was one 
alternative under evaluation. Kurt Wexel (OACSIM-FDF) noted that the draft concept 
paper proposes awarding up to $6 million among three potential winners.  He felt that 
was a lot of money to be handing out, and that the award should be based more on 
prestige than financial reward.  Doug noted that it is actually a good idea to tie money to 
the award because if tells everyone that the Army is serious about sustainability.  
Several others agreed that providing a financial incentive is important and should be 
retained. 
 
In reviewing the draft document, a few specific comments were discussed.  Doug stated 
that the definition of sustainability should be the same as that used in the ASE to ensure 
we are consistent.  In addition, presenting the award to an activity or installation that has 
done the most to improve their sustainability posture might tend to exclude those 
installations and activities that are not very far along with their initiatives, thereby 
favoring those that already have ISPs.   This may be another reason for having multiple 
awards in varying categories.  Bill emphasized that the awards program would want to 
focus on and highlight groundbreaking initiatives rather than small, local actions that 
may not apply to the broader Army.  It would also be very hard for an individual who has 



 

29 Jun 07 
 

5

demonstrated leadership in sustainability to compete against an installation. Once 
again, these may be good reasons for having multiple categories.  
 
COL Bennett asked about Mr. Davis’ desired timeline for completing the draft concept 
paper.  Bill stated that Mr. Davis was pleased to hear that a strawman concept paper 
was complete, and Bill felt we should get on Mr. Davis’ calendar as soon as possible.  
Doug felt it was important to have the ASC review and provide comment on the 
strawman before going to Mr. Davis.  All agreed on this point, and ASC members were 
asked to review and provide comments back to Doug by 16 Jul 07.  Doug and Bill will 
review and incorporate ASC comments as appropriate, and send out a revised draft for 
final ASC review shortly thereafter.  They will try to get on Mr. Davis’ calendar during the 
week of 23 Jul 07. 
 
Other New Business 
 
Kurt Wexel announced that LTG Wilson had just signed out the Apr 07 revision of the 
Energy and Water Campaign Plan for Installations.  Concurrent with its release is a call 
for input to update the plan to incorporate EO 13423 and other requirements that may 
have developed more recently.  The basic goals and building blocks of the plan will stay 
the same, but the targets will change.  Kurt also noted that we now have more strategic 
imperatives for getting to where we need to be.  Doug will email ASC members with the 
URL for downloading the plan as soon as it becomes available on the web. 
 
Doug also asked about having AEC possibly serve as a clearinghouse for distribution of 
hard copies of the ASE.  He noted that ODEP continues to receive requests for copies 
of the document and stockpiles are constantly running low.  Undoubtedly we will have 
the same problem once the strategic plan is released.   Bob Shakeshaft (AEC) indicated 
that he would check into this to determine the feasibility of having AEC perform this role.  
Phil Jessup (HQ, IMCOM) suggested that we just make the documents available on the 
web so that people could download them locally.  Doug understands the rationale 
behind doing this to save resources, but emphasized that Mr. Davis wants to make hard 
copies available to anyone who wants one. 
 
Bob Shakeshaft also announced that AEC recently released the latest version of the 
Commander’s Guide for Mission-Focused Environmental Management Systems (March 
2007).   He distributed a few hard copies at the meeting, but indicated that AEC policy is 
to post it to the website for local download.  
 
Wrap-up and Next Meeting 
 
COL Bennett thanked the attendees for their participation.  The next meeting will be 
held on 30 Aug 07, from 1300-1500 in the same building location (Presidential Towers) 
with the room number to be determined.  
 
Before COL Bennett dismissed the group, he noted that Doug Warnock would be 
leaving in July to attend the Army War College, and that he probably would not be 
returning to ODEP.  He thanked Doug for his efforts in spearheading the Army 



 

29 Jun 07 
 

6

sustainability initiative, and noted that he would be sorely missed.    Wanda Johnsen, 
who recently came to ODEP from Germany, will assume Doug’s sustainability duties. 

 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 1430. 
 
Enclosures: 
 
1 – Agenda 
2 – Attendees 
3 – Sustainability Workshop Calendar 
4 – Strategic Communication Campaign Plan Briefing 
5 – Strawman for Army Sustainability Awards 
 
 


